
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Councillor Dave Leadbetter 
(Chairman) 

Labour 

Councillor Martha Lloyd Jones 
(Vice-Chairman) 

Labour 

Councillor Harry Howard Labour 

Councillor Diane Inch Liberal Democrat 

Councillor Alan Lowe Labour 

Councillor Andrew MacManus Labour 

Councillor Tony McDermott Labour 

Councillor Peter Murray Conservative 

Councillor Ulfar Norddahl Liberal Democrat 

Councillor Ged Philbin Labour 

Councillor Joe Roberts Labour 

 
 
 
Please contact Michelle Simpson on 0151 471 7394 or e-mail 
michelle.simpson@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
 
The next meeting of the Board is on Wednesday, 10 November 2010 
 

Business Efficiency Board 
 
Wednesday, 29 September 2010 at 6.30 
p.m. 
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda, no later than when that 
item is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests 
(subject to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for 
Members), to leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting 
on the item. 
 
 

 
 

3. ABOLITION OF COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENTS 
AND THE AUDIT COMMISSION 

 

1 - 4 

4. EFFICIENCY PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 

5 - 9 

5. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2009/10 
 

10 - 49 

6. PROCUREMENT  
  

50 - 53 

 Report to follow 
 

 
 

PART II  
  

 



SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO 
INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the 
press and public and, in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that 
under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
having been satisfied that in all the circumstances of the 
case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 
 

 

7. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - QUARTER 1 
(2010/11) 

 

54 - 91 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



   

       
REPORT TO: Business Efficiency Board 

 
DATE: 
 

29 September 2010 

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Resources 
 

SUBJECT: Abolition of Comprehensive Area Assessments and the 
Audit Commission 

 
WARDS: 
 

Boroughwide 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To advise members of government announcements regarding the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment and the Audit Commission. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
To note the report. 
 
 

3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

In May 2010 the government announced its intention to abolish the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment.  On 28th May the CAA inspectorates (the 
Audit Commission, CQC, Ofsted, HMIC, HMIP and HM Inspectorate of 
Probation) announced that: 
 

• Work on the area assessment and organisational assessment could 
cease with immediate effect 

 

• There will be no new scores for use of resources or managing 
performance (the organisational assessment) 

 

• Ofsted will continue with Children’s Services assessment for 2010 
 

• CQC will review the arrangements for Adult Social Care.  Subsequently  
CQC indicated it would publish its performance reports on councils on 
25 November 2010 

 

• Appointed auditors (in Halton's case the Audit Commission) will 
continue to deliver the audit in accordance with the statutory code of 
practice including a value for money conclusion. 

 

Agenda Item 3 Page 1



   

 
 
 
 
 

 

On 13th August a further announcement was made that the government plans 
to wind up the Audit Commission.  The Commission’s responsibilities for 
overseeing and delivering local inspections and research work will stop, audit 
functions will move to the private sector and the Council will be free to appoint 
their own external auditors. 

 
4. IMPLICATIONS 

 

The general direction of government policy has been made clear: 
 

• Less regulation from the centre, and 

• Greater transparency allowing performance to be monitored by the local 
community. 

 
 However, “vital inspection, where public welfare is at risk, such as of 
Children’s Social Services, will remain to protect the vulnerable”. 
 
Local authorities are being encouraged to publish frontline performance data 
and there have been hints that the government will support proposals from the 
LGA for regular (3 yearly) peer reviews of councils. 
 
No announcement has yet been made about the future of the National 
Indicator Set. 
 
The most burdensome reporting and inspection requirements are those 
relating to CQC and Ofsted (Children’s and Adults Social Care) and whilst 
these frameworks will be reviewed, it is clear that they will be retained in some 
form. 
 

 

5. NEXT STEPS 

The full picture of government and inspectorate requirements has yet to 
emerge and it is therefore too early to know what will be required of us.  
However, it is likely that we will have more freedom to determine our own 
performance framework.  The Local Government Group (formerly known as 
the LGA) is in discussion with government about proposals for benchmarking, 
peer challenge and review, and improvement support.  Once the picture is 
clearer the Council will need to consider: 

• What information is required to manage and monitor service provision 
by the Council itself 

• What information would be useful to the public 

Page 2



   

• Whether some form of external validation such as a peer review is 
required from time to time. 

 

6. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

Whilst there are no direct policy implications, consideration will be required as 
to how in future we monitor progress towards our policy objectives. 
 

 

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The financial implications of this are unclear.  The government expects to save 
£50m from the abolition of the Audit Commission but the Council will still have 
to employ auditors and it remains to be seen how private sector costs will 
compare. 
 

 

8. IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 

There are no direct implications for the Council’s priorities from this report but 
any future changes to individual inspection regimes may have implications for 
individual priorities. 
 

 

9. RISK ANALYSIS 
 
The risk associated with these announcements is that the drive to reduce the 
government deficit will be at the expense of service performance and that it will 
be harder to assess and compare outcomes for Halton residents.  To mitigate 
this the Council will need to review the performance management 
arrangements and consider the options for benchmarking, including peer 
reviews. 
 

 

10. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUE 
 

There are no direct implications from these announcements but it should be 
noted that the inspection and regulatory requirements have been drivers for 
progress in developing the Council’s approach to equality and diversity. 

 

 

Page 3



   

 

11. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

                Document                                     Place of Inspection        Contact Officer 

1. Coalition Agreement                                   MB 2nd floor            R MacKenzie 
2. Letter from CAA Inspectorates 28.5.10 
3. Letter from CQC 5.8.10 
 

 

Page 4



 

 1 

.  
 
 
REPORT TO:  Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 29 September 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Resources  
 
SUBJECT: Efficiency Programme Update 
 
 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT: 

 
To inform the Board of progress made to date with the Efficiency Programme 
(refer to Appendix 1). 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  

 

The board is asked to note the contents of the report.   
 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

 
None 
 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified at this stage. Activity within the Efficiency Programme may 
result in recommendations to change policies as individual workstreams 
progress. 

 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None identified at this stage 
 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
The Efficiency Programme is designed to improve the effectiveness of services 
across the authority and reduce costs associated with service delivery. This 
affects all of the Council’s priorities.  
  
 
 

Agenda Item 4 Page 5



 

 2 

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
Given the financial constraints facing the Council in the immediate and medium 
terms, failure to continue to progress Efficiency Programme workstreams into 
future stages may result in the Efficiency Programme not achieving its 
objectives – primarily service improvement and cost reduction. This could result 
in services being underfunded, with departments unable to meet the costs of 
staff and other resources required to deliver to the community of Halton.    
 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
N/A 

 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
N/A 

 
 

Page 6



 

 3 

APPENDIX 1 
Halton Council Efficiency Programme 
 
Progress update; September 2010 
 
The programme is now well into Wave 2 with a number of workstreams established and 
others starting.  Each of these is bringing its own challenges. 
 

To summarise, progress to date against each workstream is given below. 
 
 
Transactional Support Services Workstream 
 
Workstream now closed – residual work being picked up by a manager group in the 
Resources directorate, along with the Wave 2 Process Review workstream detailed below. 
 
 
Non-Transactional Support Services Workstream 
 
Workstream now closed – residual work being picked up by a manager group in the 
Resources directorate, along with the Wave 2 Process Review workstream detailed below. 
 
 
Review of Open Spaces 
 
Work continues on ongoing elements of the transition plan to ensure that savings are 
sustainable. The workstream implementation team is now meeting quarterly in line with 
financial reporting periods. Quarter 1 of 10/11 has been reviewed. Next meeting 12th 
October.  
 
 
Review of Property Services 
 
Redesign and restructuring of the function is currently in progress. The cleaning service 
aspect is to be market tested. Efficiency Programme Office and Operational Director are 
working together to ensure that savings are realised and recorded. 
 
 
Review of Revenues & Benefits & Halton Direct Link 
 
A range of improvement options have been developed as this workstream has progressed. A 
number have been implemented and savings of £74,000 have been recorded to date.  
 
In response to one of the improvement opportunities – front line service delivery, an Action 
Based Research Project to trial a different way of front line service delivery was conducted 
during June / July. An evaluation of this has been completed and considered by workstream 
board. A range of options have subsequently been drawn up are currently being considered. 
 
Work continues to pursue other outstanding improvement opportunities that the workstream 
board has committed to. 
 

 
 

Page 7



 

 4 

 
ICT Support Services Review 
 
Following the close of consultation on a new structure for the service (17th July), consultation 
responses were considered and a final structure drawn up and agreed. The recruitment 
process commenced early September and is ongoing.  
 

Next step for the workstream is to draw up a baseline of systems, hardware and software 
operated across the authority. This will be evaluated and opportunities for rationalisation and 
subsequent savings are to be identified. 
 
 
Review of Contracted Services to Schools 
 
‘To-Be’ proposal report completed. This contains details of proposed changes to SLA charges 
where cost recovery is not being achieved. 
Proposed charges to be agreed. To be confirmed for publication in November following 
consideration by the Efficiency Programme Board. Consultation arrangements to be agreed. 
 
 
Review of Operational Fleet & Client Transport 
 
Outline Business Case and Project Initiation Document agreed. Work continues on the 
creation of baselines: vehicles, plant and transport contracts. Exploration of opportunities for 
collaborative working has commenced. 
 

Project plan to be drawn up for each area of scope: 
 

- The usage of operational fleet across Council departments 
- The fleet management function (procurement, maintenance, fuelling, etc) 
- Client Transport arrangements (use of contracts and transport suppliers) 
 

Each of the above areas will be managed as a separate project within the workstream. 
 
 
Transactional / Non-Transactional: Process Review 
 
An Outline Business Case has been produced and presented to Programme Board on 16th 
Sept. A workstream board has been convened (Lead is Strategic Director – CYP). Projects 
will operate on a task and finish basis within the workstream.  
 
First four ’task and finish’ projects have commenced, these will cover;  
- HR Processes – to streamline across the organisation 
- Implementation of Document Imaging & Workflow to enable more reliable and cost 
effective movement of documentation around the organisation.   
- Review of Invoice Payment Process (P2P) to streamline and adopt a common process 
- Review of officer authorisation processes 
 
Each of the above projects will result in more efficient working practices with a reduced 
resource requirement.  
 
 

Project plans are being drawn up for each project with outcomes, resources and risks 
defined. 
 

Page 8



 

 5 

Analysis work to commence with a view to drawing up proposals to take each project 
forward. 
 

 
Review of Income & Charging 
 
An Outline Business Case has been produced and presented to Programme Board on 16th 
Sept. 
 
The workstream will look at three aspects of income and charging: 

• Do services that we currently charge for achieve cost recovery? 
• Are there services provided that we do not charge for, but should consider doing so? 
• Are there income generation opportunities available that we could exploit? 

 
A baseline of existing income streams is currently being drafted.  
 
Analysis of charges to commence to establish extent of cost recovery. 
 
 

Page 9



 
REPORT TO: Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 29 September 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Finance 
 
SUBJECT: Annual Governance Report 2009/10 
 
WARDS: Borough-wide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider the report of the Audit Commission on the 2009/10 

financial statements (The Annual Governance Report). 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That; 
 

(i) The Audit Commission’s Annual Governance Report 
2009/10 in Appendix 1 be received; 

 
(ii) The Letter of Representation in Appendix 2 be approved; 
 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Annual Governance Report 2009/10 
3.1 At the Board’s meeting on 30th June 2010 Members approved the 

Council’s draft Statement of Accounts (The Abstract) for 2009/10. 
Since that meeting the Audit Commission have undertaken their audit 
of the Council’s financial statements. The District Auditor will attend the 
meeting to present the report of their findings, the Annual Governance 
report, which includes their work in respect of the Council’s 
arrangements for securing value for money, as shown in Appendix 1.  

 
2009/10 Letter of Representation 

3.2 Each year the Council is required to provide the Audit Commission with 
a Letter of Representation relating to the financial statements, as 
shown in Appendix 2.  

 
Next Steps  

3.3 Following the meeting, the Letter of Representation will be signed and 
the Audit Commission will provide their audit opinion. The Abstract of 
Accounts will then be published, with copies being made available to 
the public via Halton Direct Link, Libraries and other public locations, 
as well as via the Council’s website.  

 
 
4.0 POLICY & OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 10



4.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
5.1 There are no direct implications, however, the Council’s financial 

resources support the delivery and achievement of all the Council’s 
priorities. 

 
6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
6.1 The Council must have internal controls and processes in place to 

ensure that spending remains in line with budget. 
  
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
7.1 There are no equality or diversity issues associated with this report. 
 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D  
 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
  
 Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
  

Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2009 

 
Financial 
Management Division, 
Kingsway House, 
Widnes 

 
Ed Dawson, 
Divisional Manager 
Financial 
Management 

  
Code of Practice on 
Local Authority 
Accounting in the UK 
2009 (a Statement of 
Recommended 
Practice) 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 

Page 12



 
Michael Thomas 
The Audit Commission 
The Heath Business and Technical Park 
Runcorn 
Cheshire 
WA7 4QF 

 

Dear Mike 

Halton Borough Council – audit for the year ended 31 March 2010 

 

I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate 
enquiries of other Directors and Officers of Halton Borough Council, the 
following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the 
Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010. All 
representations cover the Council's accounts and Group Accounts included 
within the financial statements. 

 

Compliance with the statutory authorities 

I acknowledge my responsibility under the relevant statutory authorities for 
preparing the financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice 
for Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: A Statement of 
Recommended Practice which give a true and fair view of the financial 
position and financial performance of the Council and for making accurate 
representations to you. 

Supporting records 

All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose 
of your audit and all the transactions undertaken by the Council have been 
properly reflected and recorded in the accounting records. All other records 
and related information, including minutes of all Council, Executive Board 
and Committee meetings, have been made available to you. 

Irregularities 

I acknowledge my responsibility for the design and implementation of 
internal control systems to prevent and detect fraud or error. 

 

There have been no: 

• irregularities involving management or employees who have 
significant roles in the system of internal accounting control; 

• irregularities involving other employees that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements; or  

• communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-
compliance with, or deficiencies on, financial reporting practices 
which could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Page 13



I also confirm that I have disclosed: 

• my knowledge of fraud, or suspected fraud, involving either 
management, employees who have significant roles in internal 
control or others where fraud could have a material effect on the 
financial statements; and 

• my knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by 
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

 

Law, regulations, contractual arrangements and codes of practice 

There are no instances of non-compliance with laws, regulations and codes 
of practice, likely to have a significant effect on the finances or operations of 
the Council. 

 

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance.  There has been no non-compliance with requirements of 
regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance. 

 

Fair values 

I confirm the reasonableness of the significant assumptions within the 
financial statements. In respect of Note 29 I confirm: 

• the appropriateness of the measurement method; 

• the basis used by management to overcome the presumption 
under the financial reporting framework; 

• the completeness and appropriateness under the financial 
reporting framework; and  

• that subsequent events do not require adjustment to the fair value 
measurement. 

Assets 

The following have been properly recorded and, where appropriate, 
adequately disclosed in the financial statements: 

• losses arising from sale & purchase commitments; 

• agreements & options to buy back assets previously sold; and 

• assets pledged as collateral. 

 

Compensating arrangements 

There are no formal or informal compensating balancing arrangements with 
any of our cash and investment accounts.  Except as disclosed in Note 25 to 
the financial statements we have no other lines of credit arrangements. 
 

Page 14



Contingent liabilities 

There are no other contingent liabilities, other than those that have been 
properly recorded and disclosed in the financial statements. In particular: 

• there is no significant pending or threatened litigation, other than 
those already disclosed in the financial statements; 

• there are no material commitments or contractual issues, other than 
those already disclosed in the financial statements; and 

• no financial guarantees have been given to third parties. 

Related party transactions 

I confirm the completeness of the information disclosed regarding the 
identification of related parties. 

 

The identity of, and balances and transactions with, related parties have 
been properly recorded and where appropriate, adequately disclosed in the 
financial statements 

Post balance sheet events 

Since the date of approval of the financial statements by the Business 
Efficiency Board on 30th June 2010, two non adjusting post balance sheet 
events have been identified and these are disclosed at Note 24 in the 
financial statements. 

 

The Council has no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying 
value or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements. 

 

 

Signed on behalf of Halton Borough Council 

 

I confirm that this letter has been discussed by the Business Efficiency 
Board on 29th September 2010. 

 

Signed  

Name Councillor D. Leadbetter 

Position Chairman of the Business Efficiency Board 

Date  29th September 2010 

 
 

Signed 

Name Bill Dodd 

Position Operational Director, Finance 

Date  29th September 2010 

Page 15



Annual
Governance
Report
Halton Borough Council

Audit 2009/10 

Date September 2010

Page 16



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/ 
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to: 

 any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

 any third party.

Contents

Key messages 4

Next steps 6

Financial statements 7

Value for money 14

Glossary 17

Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Halton Borough 
Council 18

Appendix 2 – Amendments to the draft accounts 22

Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation 26

Appendix 4 – Value for money criteria 30

Appendix 5 – Action plan 31

Page 17



Ladies and Gentlemen 

2009/10 Annual Governance Report

I am pleased to present the final version of my report on the results of my audit work 
for 2009/10. 

I discussed and agreed a draft of the report with the Strategic Director Resources and 
Operational Director Finance on 9 September 2010 and updated it as issues have 
been resolved. 

My report sets out the key issues that you should consider before I complete the audit.  

It asks you to: 

 consider the matters raised in the report before approving the financial statements 
(pages 4 to 33); 

 take note of the adjustments to the financial statements set out in this report 
(Appendix 2);

 approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before I issue my 
opinion and conclusion (Appendix 3); and 

 agree your response to the proposed action plan (Appendix 5). 

Yours faithfully 

Michael Thomas 
District Auditor 

Date  13 September 2010 

Page 18



Key messages 

Halton Borough Council  4

Key messages 
This report summarises the findings from the 2009/10 audit. It includes the 
messages arising from my audit of your financial statements and the results of the 
work I have undertaken to assess your arrangements to secure value for money in 
your use of resources.  

Financial statements Results Page

Unqualified audit opinion Yes 7

Financial statements free from material error Yes 7

Adequate internal control environment Yes 8

Value for money Results Page

Adequate arrangements to secure value for money Yes 14

Audit opinion 

1 My audit of your 2009/10 financial statements is complete. Subject to my receipt of 
your signed letter of representation, I plan to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the 
financial statements. An unqualified opinion confirms that in my view the financial 
statements provide a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council. 
Appendix 1 contains a copy of my draft audit report. 

Financial statements 

2 The Council's 2009/10 financial statements were approved on 30 June, in line with the 
required deadline. The statements presented for audit were complete and of a good 
standard. The supporting working papers were much improved on last year, they were 
more comprehensive and of a more consistent good quality. 

3 The financial statements have been amended for one material error and a number of 
non-material errors. There are no unadjusted misstatements. The adjusted errors have 
reduced the Council's reported year end deficit on the income and expenditure account 
from £26,174k to £25,210k but its finances in terms of level of balances remain 
unaltered. I have raised some issues about the qualitative aspects of your financial 
reporting.

Value for money 

4 I intend to issue an unqualified conclusion stating that the Council has adequate 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Page 19



Key messages 

5   Halton Borough Council 

My audit has confirmed that the Council's arrangements continue to operate 
effectively. The wording of my draft report is attached at Appendix 1. 

Audit fees 

5 I set out my fee proposals to you in my Audit Opinion Plan for 2009/10. I reported to 
the Business and Efficiency Board on 10 March 2010 that I was satisfied that the audit 
fee was appropriate and no adjustment was required. However, in July 2010, and 
following discussion with officers, I carried out an additional piece of work to review a 
number of payments made to a head teacher at one of the Council's schools. This was 
outside of the scope of my agreed audit plan for 2009/10 and as a result I billed the 
Council an additional fee of £4,000.  

6 At the time of drafting this report I do not expect any further variation from the original 
fee. I will confirm the final fee in my Annual Audit Letter to the Council later in the year.

Independence

7 I can confirm that the audit has been carried out in accordance with the Audit 
Commission’s policies on integrity, objectivity and independence. 

Page 20



Next steps 

Halton Borough Council  6

Next steps 
This report identifies the key messages that you should consider before I issue my 
financial statements opinion, value for money conclusion, and audit closure 
certificate. It includes only matters of governance interest that have come to my 
attention in performing my audit. My audit is not designed to identify all matters that 
might be relevant to you.

8 I ask the Business Efficiency Board to: 

 consider the matters raised in the report before approving the financial statements 
(pages 4 to 33); 

 take note of the adjustments to the financial statements which are set out in this 
report (Appendix 2);

 approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before I issue my 
opinion and conclusion (Appendix 3); and 

 agree your response to the proposed action plan (Appendix 5). 

Page 21



Financial statements 

7   Halton Borough Council 

Financial statements 
The Council's financial statements and annual governance statement are important 
means by which the Council accounts for its stewardship of public funds. As 
Council members you have final responsibility for these statements. It is important 
that you consider my findings before you adopt the financial statements and the 
annual governance statement. 

Opinion on the financial statements 

9 My audit of your financial statements is complete and subject to receipt of the signed 
letter representation I plan to issue an audit report including an unqualified opinion on 
the financial statements. Appendix 1 contains a copy of my draft audit report. 

Errors in the financial statements 

10 The financial statements were submitted for audit in line with agreed timescales. They 
were of a good standard and although I identified a number of errors within the 
statements, only one was material in nature.

11 The material error related to pooled budgets income and expenditure. The Council is 
involved in four pooled budgets with the local PCT. Financial Reporting Standard 
(FRS) 9 requires all parties to a pooled budget arrangement to reflect their share of 
income, expenditure, assets and liabilities within their respective accounts. The 
Council's income and expenditure at service level (Children & Young People and 
Health & Community) included the PCT's share of pooled budget income and 
expenditure. This meant that the Council's cost of services income and expenditure 
figures were both overstated by £8,330k. The accounts have been amended to take 
out the PCT's share of income and expenditure 

12 I am required to report all non-trivial errors and uncertainties identified during the audit. 
I noted a number of non-trivial errors in the Council's 2009/10 financial statements, 
some of which related to disclosure notes with no impact on the income and 
expenditure account or balance sheet.  All identified errors have been adjusted by 
management.  A schedule of the adjusted amendments is provided at Appendix 2 of 
this report.

13 The more significant amendments to the accounts are as follows: 

 The accounts contained 3 prior period adjustments (PPAs). Under FRS3 PPAs are 
required for material adjustments applicable to prior periods arising from changes 
in accounting policies or from the correction of fundamental errors. The Collection 
Fund PPA, as a change in accounting policy, is correctly disclosed. However, the 
PPAs for cash and pooled budgets are neither material nor fundamental 
adjustments, they are corrections of errors in the previous year and as such should 
not be accounted for via a PPA. The accounts have been amended to remove the 
cash and pooled budget PPAs. 

Page 22



Financial statements 

Halton Borough Council  8

 The cashflow statement contained several errors, including a £1,180k 
understatement on interest received and a £1,400k understatement on capital 
grants received. The cashflow statement has been amended to reflect the correct 
values.

 Short term investments and long term borrowings were included in the 2009/10 
accounts at fair value instead of principal plus accrued interest. The use of fair 
value resulted in an overstatement of investments of £276k and an understatement 
of loans of £107k. The accounts have been amended to reflect the carrying value 
of borrowings and investments based on principal plus accrued interest.   

14 Whilst I requested a number of amendments to the Council's 2009/10 financial 
statements, I do not want this to detract from the good job made by finance staff in 
putting the accounts together. As outlined in table 1 below, I highlighted the 
organisational restructure and the associated loss of corporate knowledge as a key 
risk to the production of the 2009/10 financial statements. The risk was well managed 
by the Council. 

Recommendation

R1 Comply with the requirements of FRS9 in accounting for pooled budget 
arrangements.

R2 Restate prior year figures only where there is a material change in accounting 
policy or to correct a fundamental error. 

R3 Review the nature and cause of the errors identified during the audit and consider 
how errors could be minimised further in the future. 

Important weaknesses in internal control 

15 My audit has not identified any material weaknesses in internal control. However it has 
highlighted an issue with regard to the Adults with Learning Disabilities (ALD) pooled 
budget with the PCT. The 2009/10 ALD agreement has not been signed by the PCT.
Lack of an up to date and agreed SLA makes effective financial management and 
performance monitoring difficult. 

Recommendation

R4 Ensure the 2009/10 ALD agreement is signed by all parties as soon as possible to 
minimise both financial and service delivery risk. 

Letter of representation 

16 Before I issue my opinion, auditing standards require me to ask you and management 
for written representations about your financial statements and governance 
arrangements. Appendix 3 contains the draft letter of representation.

Page 23



Financial statements 

9   Halton Borough Council 

Key areas of judgement and audit risk 

17 In planning my audit, and as detailed in my 2009/10 audit opinion plan, I identified 
specific risks and areas of judgement to consider as part of my audit. My findings 
against these are summarised below. 

Table 1 Key areas of judgement and audit risk 

Issue or risk Finding

SORP 2009 requires changes in how the 
Council will account for local taxation. Risk 
that the new requirements are incorrectly 
applied resulting in a material error in the 
accounts.

The new accounting requirements for the 
treatment of local taxation in the Collection 
Fund have been followed by the Council. I 
identified one error relating to the 'business 
rate payment to pool' on the Collection 
Fund Income and Expenditure Account 
totalling £359k. Officers have amended the 
accounts to correct this.

General market conditions are a trigger 
event for an impairment review. 
Impairment could be significant compared 
to previous years. Risk that the carrying 
value of assets are materially misstated at 
the year end. 

My audit has not identified any 
misstatements on the value of assets on 
the balance sheet. However the accounts 
included a net revaluation/impairment line 
totalling £1,836k in disclosure note 13(a). 
Revaluations and impairments should be 
disclosed separately and at gross value for 
each category of asset. The impairments 
figure has been further increased by 
£231k. This relates to impairments on land 
and buildings which had been excluded in 
error during the closedown process. 
Officers have amended the accounts. 

Current economic conditions suggest that 
an increase in the Bad Debt Provision 
(BDP) may be required. Risk that provision 
may be understated. 

The BDP has increased from £6.5m in 
2008/09 to £8.8m in 2009/10. My audit has 
confirmed the basis of the provision. The 
BDP relates to an impairment of debtors 
and as such should be disclosed within the 
analysis of debtors at Note 17. It should 
not be included within the general 
provisions note at note 20. Note 20 has 
been amended to remove the BDP.

Increased risk of fraudulent financial 
reporting due to current economic 
environment and increased financial 
pressures.

My audit has not identified any fraudulent 
financial reporting. Officers and members 
have confirmed this within the letter of 
representation.

The Council is reviewing a number of Officers have reviewed contract 

Page 24



Financial statements 

Halton Borough Council  10

Issue or risk Finding

accounting areas as part of the transition 
to IFRS work. There is a risk that detailed 
review of accounting entries may identify 
errors under UKGAAP. 

arrangements for the purposes of IFRIC12 
and not identified any arrangements which 
need to be brought on to the Council's 
2009/10 balance sheet. My audit has 
confirmed this view. Officers' work on 
preparing for the full implementation of 
IFRS in 2010/11 is ongoing. Momentum 
has slowed during the summer and much 
further work is needed if the required 
deadlines are to be met. See detail and 
recommendation at page 15. 

Housing benefits expenditure and grant 
income are material entries in the 
accounts. Our deadline to complete the 
certification of the housing benefits subsidy 
claim is after our opinion deadline on the 
accounts.

I have carried out sufficient work on the 
housing benefits system and grant claim to 
confirm that the entries in the 2009/10 
accounts are materially correct. Review of 
the housing benefit grant claim is ongoing 
and I am on track to meet the audit 
certification deadline of 30 November 
2010.

Impact of the organisational restructure 
and the loss of corporate knowledge 
increases the risk of error and/or delay in 
producing the 2009/10 accounts. 

The Council mitigated the risks associated 
with the restructure by establishing a team 
of officers to prepare the accounts and 
increasing capacity with temporary 
contract support. This has worked well. 
The 2009/10 accounts were produced on 
time and to a good standard.  My audit 
team have also noted a significant 
improvement in the quality, number and 
consistency of working papers to support 
the accounts.

A number of staff will leave the Council 
through redundancy or early retirement 
before the end of March 2010. Risk that 
these costs may be accounted for 
incorrectly.

My audit has not identified any incorrect 
accounting of costs. 

The Council has a number of equal pay 
claims and job evaluation claims in 
progress. Risk that these may be 
incorrectly recorded in the accounts. 

The Council has accounted for equal pay 
in three ways: a provision, a reserve and a 
contingent liability. The provision of £711k 
satisfies the criteria of FRS12 and is 
supported by appropriate evidence. I have 
however queried the accounting treatment 
of the provision (see table 2 below).   

The equal pay reserve was increased by 
£1.5m during 2009/10 and now stands at 

Page 25



Financial statements 

11   Halton Borough Council 

Issue or risk Finding

just over £4m. Based on information seen 
as part of my audit I believe that the 
reserve may not be sufficient to cover all 
the potential costs of the equal pay claims 
against the Council if all claims are 
successful.

The initial contingent liability disclosure 
note on equal pay was not fully compliant 
with the SORP as no estimate of value or 
timing was included in the note. The 
contingent liability note has been amended 
to include further detail. 

Previous years audits have identified 
revenue expenditure incorrectly classified 
as capital expenditure. Risk continues into 
2009/10.

My audit testing has not identified any 
revenue expenditure incorrectly classified 
as capital.

Mersey Gateway development costs 
continue to be significant. Risk that the 
2009/19 accounting treatment may not be 
in line with the required financial reporting 
standards.

My audit has not identified any incorrect 
accounting treatment on Mersey Gateway 
development costs in 2009/10. I continue 
to have ongoing dialogue with the 
Operational Director Finance on Mersey 
Gateway.

Last year's audit identified a material error 
in the Council's accounts relating to the 
existence of building assets, this was 
subsequently corrected via a prior period 
adjustment. This risk continues into 
2009/10.

My audit of fixed assets has not identified 
any issues relating to the existence of 
assets.

The financial instruments note last year 
required significant amendment. Risk of 
incorrect disclosure in 2009/10. 

The 2009/10 financial instruments note 
has been amended to reflect correct 
values on financial liabilities and financial 
assets. The paragraph relating to other 
financial instruments was incorrect and 
has been deleted. The narrative disclosure 
within the note could be made simpler and 
more relevant to the Council. 

The 2008/09 audit identified errors in the 
related party transactions note. Risk of 
non-disclosure of politically sensitive items 
in the accounts approved by members in 
June 2010. 

My audit team noted some minor 
disclosure issues with this year's related 
party transactions note. Officers have 
amended the note to include the additional 
disclosures. 

Page 26



Financial statements 

Halton Borough Council  12

Recommendation

R5 Review the content and clarity of the financial instruments note for 2010/11, paying 
particular attention to the categorisation of financial instruments and the associated 
accounting treatment. 

Accounting practice and financial reporting 

18 I consider the non-numeric content of your financial reporting. Table 2 contains the 
issues I want to raise with you.

Table 2  

Issue or risk Finding

Text disclosures in respect of the following:

 Foreword

 Accounting policies 

 Statement of movement of general fund 
balance (note 12) 

 Related party transactions (note 7) 

 Contingent liabilities (note 23) 

 Post balance sheet events (note 24) 

 Trust funds (note 27) 

 Financial instruments (note 29) 

Various cross referencing inconsistencies 
were noted between statements, notes 
and narrative disclosures. 

I identified a number of text disclosure 
issues and cross referencing 
inconsistencies all of which have been 
amended in the re-stated accounts. 
Further details are at Appendix 2. 

Equal pay has been accounted for in 
several ways in the 2009/10 financial 
statements: as a provision, reserve and 
contingent liability. The provision of £711k 
has been charged to the general fund in 
2009/10.

Regulation 30A of the Local Authorities 
(Capital Finance and Accounting) 
(England) Regulations 2003/3146 
introduces a new power providing 
discretion to local authorities not to charge 
to revenue a provision for back pay arising 
from unequal pay claims. This new power 
applies for the financial years 2006/07 to 
2010/11 inclusive. The regulation requires 
the equal pay provision to be held in an 
'equal pay back pay account' rather than 
be charged to revenue in the general fund. 
The equal pay account should be held in 
the lower half of the balance sheet (much 
like a reserve). By charging the £711k 
provision to the general fund the Council 

Page 27



Financial statements 

13   Halton Borough Council 

Issue or risk Finding

has understated its general fund in 
2009/10. The impact on the general fund 
should only occur when the cash is 
actually paid out, in 2010/11 or future 
years.

Recommendation

R6 Establish an equal pay back pay account and comply with the accounting of 
requirements of Regulation 30A of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and 
Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003/3146. 

Page 28



Value for money 

Halton Borough Council  14

Value for money 
I am required to decide whether the Council put in place satisfactory corporate 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the value for money conclusion. I have based my 
conclusion on my work on the scored use of resources judgement.

Value for money conclusion 

19 I assess your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your 
use of resources against criteria specified by the Audit Commission. I have shown my 
conclusions on each of the areas in Appendix 4. 

20 I intend to issue an unqualified conclusion stating that the Council had adequate 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. 
Appendix 1 contains my draft report. 

Managing finances 

21 The Council has a proven track record of robust financial management and good 
financial standing which has continued in 2009/10. The Council has a good 
understanding of it costs and comparative performance and it has achieved both cost 
and service efficiencies during the year. It has put in place a major efficiency 
programme, including a programme of service reviews, which it anticipates will deliver 
significant ongoing efficiency savings to the local community over the next couple of 
years.

22 The Council has established financial planning arrangements in place with a medium 
term financial strategy (MTFS) that is updated annually. The MTFS includes 
consideration of the economic recession and scenario planning as well as the 
efficiency savings and cost savings required in each of the next three years.

23 Following the Government's emergency budget in June 2010 the Council has revised 
its 2010/11 budget to reflect the in-year reductions to its government and other grants 
of some £6.8m. It has identified a number of actions to address the funding shortfall 
and thereby ensure a continued balanced budget. As with most of the public sector, 
the financial outlook for the Council is extremely challenging. The budget report to 
Council in March 2010 identified a 'pessimistic' funding gap of £10m for 2010/11 but 
this has now been increased to around £15m. The annual update of the MTFS will 
consider this and its implications for future years. 

24 The Council has a fairer charging policy for personal budgets for social care. This and 
other service charges, such as libraries, are part of its overall budget strategy and 
income is reported and monitored against budget as part of the quarterly reporting 
process. A recent Internal Audit report on charging for services highlighted some good 
evidence of benchmarking and examples where charging powers have been used to 
influence consumer behaviour such as internet use in libraries. It also highlighted 

Page 29



Value for money 

15   Halton Borough Council 

several areas for improvement including recommending the development of a 
corporate charging policy and the establishment of a corporate framework to facilitate 
a more consistent approach to applying concessions. I endorse those 
recommendations particularly given the challenging financial outlook facing the 
Council. 

25 As members are aware local government bodies are required to prepare their financial 
statements on a new accounting basis in 2010/11 to comply with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). After a late start the Council’s progress on 
implementing the requirements of IFRS started to pick up some momentum in late 
2009 but subsequently slowed again due to the organisational restructure and the 
2009/10 accounts closedown process. A cross-directorate working group was set up in 
the summer of 2009, training took place and key issues were identified. In January 
2010 an IFRS report including a high level implementation plan was presented to 
members of the Business Efficiency Board. Future IFRS progress reports will be taken 
to this Board. A more detailed implementation plan is in draft and officers indicate that 
they will commence the IFRS restatement following completion of the 2009/10 financial 
statements process.

26 There is a significant amount of work still to be done if the required deadlines for the 
implementation of IFRS are to be met. A lot of base information is still to be collected 
and its impact assessed before the accounting treatment can be determined, this is 
particularly so on leases and property, plant and equipment. Early indications from 
officers that the restated 2009/10 balance sheet would be available by the end of 
October 2010 have slipped.

Recommendation

R7 Develop a corporate charging policy and establish a corporate framework to ensure 
a more consistent approach to applying concessions 

R8 Ensure that sufficient capacity and priority is given to the implementation of IFRS to 
meet the required deadlines. 

Governing the business 

27 The Council has well established governance arrangements in place which are well 
understood by both officers and members. There is a strong ethical framework and 
culture within the organisation and a real commitment to deliver good quality services 
which meet the needs of the local community.

28 The Council is an active participant in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI). The Business 
Efficiency Board’s work plan was revised in 2009/10 to include regular reports and 
updates on counter fraud activity. These reports include details on all fraud related 
issues including NFI matches, investigations and successful recovery of monies to the 
Council. There is a fraud e-learning package for officers and members on the Council’s 
intranet and high numbers have registered for the training. No major employee frauds 
have been identified at Halton during 2009/10. Housing Benefit fraud is dealt with by a 
separate fraud investigation team which has a good track record of identifying and 
effectively dealing with fraud. 

Page 30



Value for money 

Halton Borough Council  16

29 The Council has continued to develop its commissioning and procurement functions 
and I have seen good evidence of joint procurement initiatives with partners and 
neighbouring organisations. The Council now has a sustainable procurement policy 
with identified champions at member and executive level with a structured training 
programme for key staff being developed.

30 There is generally good use of data to inform decision making and service delivery with 
some good examples of improved outcomes being delivered.  Data quality 
arrangements have improved from last year. Risk based work has been undertaken to 
test systems and develop improvement plans, information security policies and 
guidance has been enhanced and data quality training has been delivered. Work is 
ongoing to continue to strengthen data quality arrangements. 

Managing resources 

31 For the first time this year I assessed the Council's arrangements for planning, 
organising and developing its workforce. My assessment took place during a period of 
significant change for the Council yet I was able to conclude positively on the 
arrangements in place. As part of its ongoing efficiency programme the Council 
implemented a major organisational restructure during 2009/10 which included the loss 
of over 100 FTE posts and changed roles and responsibilities for many staff. This 
organisational change was managed well. The Council engaged staff effectively, 
communicating change using a range of mechanisms and also provided good support 
for staff, with input from partners, to help with job search skills. I also noted that 
relationships with trade unions continue to be very good.

32 The Council’s asset management arrangements are adequate. It has a current asset 
management plan which covers minimum requirements. It has continued to manage 
and use its assets well at an operational level with some good examples of Council 
assets being used to benefit the local community and enhance service delivery. There 
is however scope to further strengthen the links between corporate strategy and 
service outcomes, and to more formally integrate financial and property planning.   

33 The Asset Management Working Group (AMWG) has continued to develop since its 
inception in October 2008. It has cross directorate membership, including strategic 
directors, and reports to the Management Team.  It would benefit from a regular review 
of its terms of reference including clarification of its reporting responsibilities. Aware of 
the need to strengthen asset management arrangements AMWG invited CIPFA to 
review the Council's property services arrangements. CIPFA’s report, in August 2009, 
identified a number of areas for improvement particularly around strategic asset 
management and also outlined a number of options for the future delivery of property 
and asset management services within the borough. At the time of my detailed audit 
work in March 2010 AMWG were establishing an action plan to address the CIPFA 
recommendations.

Recommendation

R9 Continue to address and improve the strategic aspects of asset management, 
including developing a stronger and more explicit link between financial and asset 
planning.

Page 31



Glossary 

17   Halton Borough Council 

Glossary

Annual governance statement

34 A statement of internal control prepared by an audited body and published with the 
financial statements. 

Audit closure certificate

35 A certificate that I have completed the audit following statutory requirements. This 
marks the point when I have completed my responsibilities for the audit of the period 
covered by the certificate. 

Audit opinion

36 On completion of the audit of the accounts, auditors must give their opinion on the 
financial statements, including:  

 whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the audited body 
and its spending and income for the year in question;

 whether they have been prepared properly, following the relevant accounting rules; 
and

 for local probation boards and trusts, on the regularity of their spending and 
income.

Qualified  

37 The auditor has some reservations or concerns. 

Unqualified

38 The auditor does not have any reservations.  

Value for money conclusion  

39 The auditor’s conclusion on whether the audited body has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources.

Page 32



 Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Halton Borough Council

Halton Borough Council  18

Appendix 1 – Independent 
auditor’s report to Members of 
Halton Borough Council 

Opinion on the accounting statements 

I have audited the Authority and Group accounting statements and related notes of 
Halton Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2010 under the Audit 
Commission Act 1998. The Authority and Group accounting statements comprise the 
Authority and Group Income and Expenditure Account, the Authority Statement of 
Movement on the General Fund Balance, the Authority and Group Balance Sheet, the 
Authority and Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Authority 
and Group Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund and the related notes. These 
accounting statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out in the 
Statement of Accounting Policies. 

This report is made solely to the members of Halton Borough Council in accordance 
with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in 
paragraph 49 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies 
published by the Audit Commission in April 2008. 

Respective responsibilities of the Operational Director Finance and auditor 

The Operational Director Finance’s responsibilities for preparing the accounting 
statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A 
Statement of Recommended Practice are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities 
for the Statement of Accounts. 

My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements in accordance with relevant 
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland).

I report to you my opinion as to whether the Authority and Group accounting 
statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory 
requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice, of: 

 the financial position of the Authority and its income and expenditure for the year; 
and

 the financial position of the Group and its income and expenditure for the year.

I review whether the governance statement reflects compliance with ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: A Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in 
June 2007. I report if it does not comply with proper practices specified by 

Page 33



Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Halton Borough Council

19   Halton Borough Council 

CIPFA/SOLACE or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information 
I am aware of from my audit of the accounting statements. I am not required to 
consider, nor have I considered, whether the governance statement covers all risks 
and controls. Neither am I required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures 

I read other information published with the Authority and Group accounting statements, 
and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Authority and Group accounting 
statements. This other information comprises the Explanatory Foreword. I consider the 
implications for my report if I become aware of any apparent misstatements or material 
inconsistencies with the Authority and Group accounting statements. My 
responsibilities do not extend to any other information. 

Basis of audit opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of 
Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on 
Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes 
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in 
the Authority and Group accounting statements and related notes. It also includes an 
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Authority in the 
preparation of the Authority and Group accounting statements and related notes, and 
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances, 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations 
which I considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give 
reasonable assurance that the Authority and Group accounting statements and related 
notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other 
irregularity or error. In forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the 
presentation of information in the Authority and Group accounting statements and 
related notes. 

Opinion

In my opinion: 

 The Authority accounting statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with 
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended 
Practice, of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2010 and its 
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

 The Group accounting statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with 
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended 
Practice, of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and its income 
and expenditure for the year then ended. 

Page 34



 Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Halton Borough Council

Halton Borough Council  20

Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
the use of resources

Authority’s Responsibilities 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance and regularly to review the adequacy and effectiveness 
of these arrangements.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities 

I am required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper 
arrangements have been made by the Authority for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit 
Commission requires me to report to you my conclusion in relation to proper 
arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria for principal local authorities specified 
by the Audit Commission and published in May 2008 and updated in October 2009. I 
report if significant matters have come to my attention which prevent me from 
concluding that the Authority has made such proper arrangements. I am not required 
to consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 
operating effectively. 

Conclusion

I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and having 
regard to the criteria for principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission 
and published in May 2008 and updated in October 2009, and the supporting 
guidance, I am satisfied that, in all significant respects, Halton Borough Council made 
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2010. 

Page 35



Appendix 1 – Independent auditor’s report to Members of Halton Borough Council

21   Halton Borough Council 

Certificate 

I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the 
requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued 
by the Audit Commission. 

Michael Thomas 

Officer of the Audit Commission 

The Heath Business & Technical Park, Runcorn, Widnes, Cheshire WA7 4QX 

Date

Page 36



 Appendix 2 – Amendments to the draft accounts  

Halton Borough Council  22

Appendix 2 – Amendments to the 
draft accounts 

I identified the following misstatements during my audit and managers have made the 
necessary adjustments. I bring them to your attention to aid you in fulfilling your 
governance responsibilities. 

Table 3  

Adjusted
misstatements

Nature of adjustment 

Arithmetic errors 

Income and 
expenditure
account

Several errors were identified on the income and expenditure 
account:

 Incorrect use of PPAs to correct accounting errors on cash and 
pooled budgets relating to the previous year. 

 Inclusion in error of pooled budget income and expenditure relating 
to the PCT. 

The correction of these errors impacted upon a number of entries 
within the financial statements. The major impact has been on the 
Council's 2009/10 income and expenditure account. Gross 
expenditure has reduced by £8,335k and gross income has reduced 
by £7,371k. The reported deficit for the year has decreased from 
£26,174k to £25,210k. 

Balance sheet Several errors were identified on the balance sheet: 

 Temporary (short term) investments and long term borrowings and 
were included on the balance sheet at fair value instead of principal 
plus accrued interest. The use of fair value resulted in an 
overstatement of investments and an understatement of long term 
borrowings. Temporary investments have been reduced by £276k 
and long term borrowings have been increased by £107k. 

 Intangible assets were incorrectly shown on the balance sheet as 
£4,133k and did not agree to the analysis of intangible assets at 
note13(c) which totalled £2,267k. Intangible assets on the balance 
sheet have been reduced by £964k to £2,267k. Net fixed assets 
have also been reduced by the same amount. 

 The financial instruments adjustment account has reduced from 

Page 37



Appendix 2 – Amendments to the draft accounts  

23   Halton Borough Council 

£383k to zero. This amendment relates to the use of fair values for 
investments and borrowing (see paragraph above). 

Cashflow 
Statement

Several compilation errors were identified within the cashflow 
statement:

 Interest received - disclosed as £1,815k but should be £(2,995)k.  

 Capital grants received - disclosed as £15,948k  but should be 
£(17,350)k

 Interest paid - disclosed as  £(1,005)k but should be £1,154k 

 Incorrect use of brackets on cash outflows and inflows 

In addition the removal of the PPAs on cash and pooled budgets has 
resulted in amendments to the entries relating to other operating cash 
payments and rents (after rebates).

Note 12
Analysis  of 
movement on 
general fund 

Two entries within note 12 were included at net value rather than at 
gross value, as follows: 

 Impairment of fixed assets has increased from £(8,870k) to 
£(10,272k)

 Government grants deferred amortisation has increased from 
£4,269k to £5,671k. 

Note 13 Fixed 
assets

Note 13(a) on fixed assets disclosed a net figure of £1,386k for 
impairments and revaluations. Impairments and revaluations should 
be separately disclosed at gross value across all asset categories. 
Additionally impairments were understated by £231k as impairments 
on land and buildings had been excluded in error during the accounts 
closedown process. Note 13(a) has been amended as follows: 

 Total revaluations £12,537k - analysed across land & buildings 
£12,430k, AUC £0k and surplus assets £107k.

 Total impairments £11,152k - analysed across land & buildings 
£3,895k, AUC £3,837k and surplus assets £3,419k. 

Note 29 
Financial
instruments

The tables within note 29 on financial instruments contained a 
number of incorrect figures mainly as a result of the inclusion of 
inappropriate items, the largest of which were the payroll creditor of 
£4,724k and the VAT debtor of £2,2025k.

Financial instruments balances table: total liabilities have increased, 
long term from £19,893k to £20,000k and current from £23,912k to 
£26,452k. Total current assets have reduced from £39,982k to 
£36,040k.

The figures in the fair value tables have also been amended. 

Collection fund Differences totalling £359k were noted between two entries in the 
collection fund income and expenditure account and corresponding 
items in the Council's NNDR3 grant claim. The collection fund income 
and expenditure account and its associated note (note 4) have been 
amended as follows: 

 Income - business ratepayers has reduced from £(44,093)k to 

Page 38



 Appendix 2 – Amendments to the draft accounts  

Halton Borough Council  24

£(43,734)k

 Expenditure - business rate payment to pool has reduced from
£43,929k to £43,570k. 

Cross
references

Various cross referencing inconsistencies and rounding were 
identified across the primary statements and notes to the accounts. 
The accounts have been amended to correct these. 

Text disclosure errors 

Foreword The foreword has been enhanced to include further information on the 
increase in the pension liability. Additional narrative included at note 
13(b) to explain the differences in the reported capital expenditure 
figures between note 13 and the foreword. 

Accounting
policies

The initial set of accounting policies contained various errors and 
omissions relating to: financial liabilities and financial assets; tangible 
fixed assets; publicity; building control account; income under LA 
Goods & Services Act; section137 expenditure and business 
improvement districts. In addition further explanation of the 2009/10 
SORP changes were required on several items: IFRIC12 review; new 
accounting arrangements on Council Tax and Collection Fund; 
revised long term liabilities due to be settled within 12 months of 
balance sheet date now presented as current liabilities and the new 
remuneration reporting requirements for senior officers.

The accounting policies have been amended to correct the errors and 
omissions and to more fully comply with the SORP. 

Note 7
Related party 
transactions

Note 7 was amended to include: 

 Halton and St Helens PCT as a related party, the Council had 
receipts of some £12.55m and payments of over £4m with the PCT 
in 2009/10. 

 Reference to the fact that one of the councillors is married to a non 
executive director at Halton and St Helens PCT. 

Note 20 
Provisions

The bad debt provision (BDP) of £8.8m was initially included in the 
general provisions note at note 20. The BDP represents an 
impairment of debtors (a reduction in debtors) and as such should not 
be included within general provisions. 

Note 23 
Contingent
liabilities 

Note 23 included a reference to ‘remaining’ equal pay claims but 
provided no estimate of potential value or timing. Similarly, two 
outstanding employment tribunal claims were disclosed but with no 
estimate of the value or timing of the potential liability. The SORP 
indicates that any contingent liabilities disclosed should outline the 
nature of the liability and provide an estimate of the value involved. 
Note 23 has been enhanced to include more detail.

In addition Note 23 has been expanded to include reference to the 
government’s recent decision to cease BSF and its impact with regard 
to potential contractual commitments/claims against the Council. 

Page 39



Appendix 2 – Amendments to the draft accounts  

25   Halton Borough Council 

Note 24 
Post balance 
sheet events

The draft accounts included no post balance sheet disclosures at note 
24. Two such disclosures were necessary for 2009/10, as follows: 

 Date of authorisation of the accounts, name of person authorising 
the accounts and an indication of any PBSEs between the end of 
the financial year and the date of authorisation. 

 Impact of the change from RPI to CPI as the basis for future public 
sector pension increases. The Cheshire Pension Fund actuary has 
assessed the impact for Halton BC as between 6 and 8% which 
would mean a reduction in the net scheme deficit at note 28 from 
£213m to between £172.6m and £182.7m. 

Note 24 has been amended to include both disclosures. 

Note 27 
Trust funds 

The opening and closing trust fund balances (£459k and £0) relating 
to Norton Priory Museum were omitted in error from the trust funds 
disclosure note at note 27.  

Whilst opening and closing balances were included within note 27 for 
all trust funds, income and expenditure figures were not disclosed for 
all funds.

Note 27 has been enhanced to include the above disclosures. 

Note 29 
Financial
instruments

The paragraph relating to other financial instruments was incorrect 
and has been deleted. 

Page 40



 Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

Halton Borough Council  26

Appendix 3 – Draft letter of 
representation

Michael Thomas 
The Audit Commission 
The Heath Business and Technical Park 
Runcorn
Cheshire
WA7 4QF 

Dear Mike 

      Halton Borough Council – audit for the year ended 31 March 2010 

I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate enquiries of 
other Directors and Officers of Halton Borough Council, the following representations 
given to you in connection with your audit of the Council’s financial statements for the 
year ended 31 March 2010. All representations cover the Council's accounts and 
Group Accounts included within the financial statements. 

      Compliance with the statutory authorities 

I acknowledge my responsibility under the relevant statutory authorities for preparing 
the financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended Practice which give 
a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Council 
and for making accurate representations to you. 

      Supporting records 

All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 
audit and all the transactions undertaken by the Council have been properly reflected 
and recorded in the accounting records. All other records and related information, 
including minutes of all Council, Executive Board and Committee meetings, have been 
made available to you. 

      Irregularities 

I acknowledge my responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control 
systems to prevent and detect fraud or error. 

There have been no: 

Page 41



Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

27   Halton Borough Council 

 irregularities involving management or employees who have significant roles in the 
system of internal accounting control; 

 irregularities involving other employees that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements; or

 communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with, or 
deficiencies on, financial reporting practices which could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

I also confirm that I have disclosed: 

 my knowledge of fraud, or suspected fraud, involving either management, 
employees who have significant roles in internal control or others where fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statements; and 

 my knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators or others. 

Law, regulations, contractual arrangements and codes of practice 

There are no instances of non-compliance with laws, regulations and codes of 
practice, likely to have a significant effect on the finances or operations of the Council. 

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.  There 
has been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

      Fair Values 

I confirm the reasonableness of the significant assumptions within the financial 
statements. In respect of Note 29 I confirm: 

 the appropriateness of the measurement method; 

 the basis used by management to overcome the presumption under the financial 
reporting framework; 

 the completeness and appropriateness under the financial reporting framework; 
and

 that subsequent events do not require adjustment to the fair value measurement. 

     Assets 

The following have been properly recorded and, where appropriate, adequately 
disclosed in the financial statements: 

 losses arising from sale & purchase commitments; 

 agreements & options to buy back assets previously sold; and 

 assets pledged as collateral. 

Page 42



 Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

Halton Borough Council  28

     Compensating arrangements 

There are no formal or informal compensating balancing arrangements with any of our 
cash and investment accounts.  Except as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial 
statements we have no other lines of credit arrangements. 

     Contingent liabilities 

There are no other contingent liabilities, other than those that have been properly 
recorded and disclosed in the financial statements. In particular: 

 there is no significant pending or threatened litigation, other than those already 
disclosed in the financial statements; 

 there are no material commitments or contractual issues, other than those already 
disclosed in the financial statements; and 

 no financial guarantees have been given to third parties. 

     Related party transactions 

I confirm the completeness of the information disclosed regarding the identification of 
related parties. 

The identity of, and balances and transactions with, related parties have been properly 
recorded and where appropriate, adequately disclosed in the financial statements 

     Post balance sheet events 

Since the date of approval of the financial statements by the Business Efficiency Board 
on 30th June 2010, two non adjusting post balance sheet events have been identified 
and these are disclosed at Note 24 in the financial statements. 

 The Council has no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

Signed on behalf of Halton Borough Council 

I confirm that this letter has been discussed by the Business Efficiency Board on 29th 
September 2010. 

Signed  

Name Councillor D. Leadbetter 

Position Chairman of the Business Efficiency Board 

Date 29th September 2010 

Page 43



Appendix 3 – Draft letter of representation

29   Halton Borough Council 

Signed

Name Bill Dodd 

Position Operational Director, Finance 

Date 29th September 2010 

Page 44



 Appendix 4 – Value for money criteria  

Halton Borough Council  30

Appendix 4 – Value for money 
criteria

KLOE Met

Managing finances 

Planning for financial health Yes

Understanding costs and achieving efficiencies Yes

Financial reporting Yes

Governing the business 

Commissioning and procurement Yes

Use of information Yes

Good governance Yes

Risk management and internal control Yes

Managing resources 

Natural resources N/A

Strategic asset management Yes

Workforce Yes

Page 45



Appendix 5 – Action plan

31   Halton Borough Council 

Appendix 5 – Action plan 

Page
no.

Recommendation Priority 

1 = Low 
2 = Med 
3 = High 

Responsibility Agreed Comments Date

Annual Governance Report 2009/10 - Recommendations 

8 Comply with the requirements of FRS9 in 
accounting for pooled budgets 
arrangements.

3 DM Financial 
Management

Yes In future any Prior Year 
Restatements will only be 
made in accordance with 
FRS3.

May
2011

8 Restate prior year figures only where there 
is a material change in accounting policy or 
to correct a fundamental error. 

3 DM Financial 
Management

Yes The annual closedown 
guidance and checklist will 
be amended to ensure that 
in future the requirements of 
FRS9 will be complied with. 

Sept
2010

8 Review the nature and cause of the errors 
identified during the audit and consider how 
errors could be minimised further in the 
future.

3 DM Financial 
Management

Yes The nature and cause of 
errors will be reviewed and 
procedures for reviewing the 
draft Statement of Accounts 
will be enhanced to ensure 
that errors are minimised as 
far as possible in future.

Sept
2010

8 Ensure the 2009/10 ALD agreement is 3 OD Prevention & Yes Every effort will be made to Sept

P
a
g
e
 4

6



 Appendix 5 – Action plan

Halton Borough Council  32

Page
no.

Recommendation Priority 

1 = Low 
2 = Med 
3 = High 

Responsibility Agreed Comments Date

signed by all parties as soon as possible to 
minimise both financial and service delivery 
risk.

Commissioning ensure that the PCT sign the 
ALD agreement each year.

2010

11 Review the content and clarity of the 
financial instruments note for 2010/11, 
paying particular attention to the 
categorisation of financial instruments and 
the associated accounting treatment. 

3 DM Financial 
Management

Yes A fundamental review of the 
Financial Instruments note 
will be undertaken for 
2010/11, in the light of 
experience gained and 
guidance from CIPFA. 

May
2011

13 Establish an equal pay back pay account 
and comply with the accounting of 
requirements of Regulation 30A of the 
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and 
Accounting) (England) Regulations 
2003/3146. 

3 DM Financial 
Management

Yes The requirement for an 
equal pay back pay account 
will be considered in 
preparing the 2010/11 
accounts.

May
2011

15 Develop a corporate charging policy and 
establish a corporate framework to ensure 
a more consistent approach to applying 
concessions.

3 OD Finance Yes Under Wave 2 of the 
Efficiency Programme a 
workstream regarding 
Income and Charging 
Arrangements is about to 
commence which will 
address all of these issues.

Sept
2010

15 Ensure that sufficient capacity and priority 3 DM Financial Yes Having now completed the Sept

P
a

g
e
 4

7



Appendix 5 – Action plan

33   Halton Borough Council 

Page
no.

Recommendation Priority 

1 = Low 
2 = Med 
3 = High 

Responsibility Agreed Comments Date

is given to the implementation of IFRS to 
meet the required deadlines. 

Management 2009/10 accounts work has 
recommenced as a matter of 
urgency to prepare for the 
implementation of IFRS, with 
the initial objective of 
restating the 2009/10 
accounts on an IFRS basis 
by 30th November 2010.

2010

16 Continue to address and improve the 
strategic aspects of asset management, 
including developing a stronger and more 
explicit link between financial and asset 
planning.

3 SD Resources Yes The on-going work of the 
Asset Management Working 
Group will continue to 
develop the Council’s 
strategic asset management 
and to strengthen the link 
between financial and asset 
planning.

Ongoing

P
a
g
e
 4

8



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, Braille, audio or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 49



 

 1 

 
 
REPORT TO:  Business Efficiency Board 
 
DATE: 29 September 2010 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Procurement Update 
 
WARDS: Boroughwide 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT: 

 
1.1 To inform the Board of progress made to date by the new Procurement Centre 

of Excellence 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:  That: 

 
(1) the Board is asked to note the contents and progress to date; and 
 
(2) that the revised Procurement Strategy is brought to the Business 

Efficiency Board for approval. 

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

 
3.1 The Procurement Team 
 The new team was established on 1st April 2010 as part of the major Halton 

Borough Council restructure. The purpose is to lead the Council in managing 
change and developing procurement activity to realise spend reduction and to 
make financial savings. This team is led by a Divisional Manager with four 
Category Managers, one attached to each of the four Directorates, to 
coordinate the review and rollout strengthened procurement practice. 

 
3.2  Procurement Strategy 
 The current Strategy is under review and will be presented at a future 

Efficiency Board meeting. Clearer targets are being developed which will be 
measurable and achievable and that support the efficiency agenda, assist to 
drive changing practice within the Council and to deliver savings. 

 
 
3.3 Rollout of Procurement Support across the Council 
 The Council has committed to using the E-Tendering system, Due North (The 

Chest) to advertise and manage all tender exercises. This will be phased 
across all spend areas of the Council over the next year which will bring a 
number of benefits both to the Council and to business community. 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 50



 

 2 

 The E-portal (Due North) is a web based tool which many Authorities 
nationally have signed up to including our neighbours in the North West. It 
allows us to advertise trading opportunities to anyone that accesses this portal 
and all business who are registered (which is free) on the system. It simply 
advertises the opportunity to either quote for work under £50K but also to 
tender for work over £50K, and the system manages the formal tender 
process. 

 
 Benefits to Halton BC are; complete transparent trading opportunities 

advertised; maintaining a robust audit trail of tendering processes and allowing 
efficient work practice. Benefits to businesses are; gaining access to all 
trading opportunities with Halton BC; a full audit trail of their activity and easier 
administration/reduced duplication of effort.  

 
 The Procurement team intend working with the Halton Chamber of Commerce 

to promote the use of this system, to encourage local businesses to sign up. 
Workshops will be held later in Autumn to promote trading opportunities with 
Halton BC, improved ways of working and how the Procurement team are 
supporting buyers/commissioners across the Council. 

 
3.4  Progress to date 
 The new Procurement team have already reduced the Council’s spend by in 

excess of £600k from the review and award of new contracts and the review of 
procurement activity and processes since April 2010. 

 
 The areas of spend reduction are; Agency Supply Workers, Rail Tickets, 

Postage, Stationery, Office Furniture, Personal Protective Equipment, Civic 
Newspaper, MFD’s, Frozen Food, Wheeled bins/plastic boxes, Print and 
Specialist Print Paper. 

 
3.5  New spend areas of review 
 New areas currently under review by the team with Directorates are; 

Stationery (e auction), Specialised Paper, Washroom Services, Salt Barn, 
Street Lighting, Cash Collection, Window Cleaning, Fire Extinguishers, 
Pantomime, Frozen Food, Beer, Wines and Spirits,  Adult with Learning 
Difficulties & Mental Health, Hearing Impairment, Disability/Adaptations, Civic 
Magazine, First Aid Supplies, Semi-Independence, Independent Mental 
Incapacity Advocate, CDM Consultants, Confidential Waste, Stair Lifts, 
Furniture Removals, Consultancy Services (all), Electrical Contractors and 
CCTV Management. 

 
 
 
3.6  Future plans 
 To promote and implement the full use of Due North – The Chest where 

appropriate. To work across the Council on all areas of spend in order to 
further improve procurement practice and to reduce spend and capturing 
savings into the budget process. 

 

Page 51



 

 3 

 The Procurement team will work with Halton Chamber to promote transparent 
trading opportunities via Due North and support businesses in registering and 
published spend data, contract & tendering data as required by Coalition 
Government by January 2011.  

 
3.7 Efficiency work streams  
 The Procurement team are supporting the efficiency team on three main work 

areas which include: 
 
3.8.1 Review of Contracted Services to Schools 
 The review of contracted services to schools in terms of developing existing 

services and new business opportunities that could be presented to income 
generate for Halton BC for a traded procurement service which will ultimately 
bring more efficient procurement activity in school spending and where we can 
work collaboratively to let contracts ‘internally’ with HBC and schools to create 
economies of scale benefits. 

 
3.8.2 Review of Operational Fleet & Client Transport 
 The team will support this work stream in terms of reviewing and developing 

ideas as to how the procurement elements of Operational Fleet and Transport 
could be more efficient and dovetail into the wider procurement agenda and 
review. The areas under review are: 

 

− The usage of operational fleet across Council departments 

− The fleet management function (procurement, maintenance, fuelling, etc) 

− Client Transport arrangements (use of contracts and transport suppliers) 
 
3.8.3 Transactional Process Review 
 Procurement sits as a transactional service to the Council and the team is 

working closely with Finance, Ops Finance, Admin, HR and Revenue & 
Benefits in particular, to map out the end to end processes, to streamline and 
review in order to continue to make these centres of activity more efficient and 
effective. 

 
 Areas under review include: centralised budget and process management 

options; standardisation of products (stationery and furniture). The 
development of batch processing payments to suppliers and e payments such 
as procurement cards. These processes will remove paper activity and reduce 
processing time significantly. The team are also working with Finance to 
realise the spend reductions identified though better procurement and new 
contracts awarded etc. to ensure this action is seen in the budget allocation 
both in year and forward looking into the budget setting process for 2011/12 
and beyond. 

 
 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None identified at this stage. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

Page 52



 

 4 

 
5.1 None identified at this stage. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 The Procurement Centre of Excellence is designed to improve procurement 

practice across the Council to reduce costs associated with procurement but 
also to realise significant savings from more robust procurement activity. This 
affects all of the Council’s priorities.  

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 Given the financial constraints facing the Council in the immediate and 

medium terms, failure to identify and realise savings from more robust 
procurement practice may result in financial pressures to the Council not being 
met. This could result in services being underfunded, with departments unable 
to meet the costs of staff and other resources required to deliver to the 
community of Halton.    

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 N/A 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 N/A 
 
 

Page 53



Agenda Item 7Page 54
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



P
a
g
e
 5

9
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 6

3
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 6

6
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 6

7
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

0
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

2
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

5
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 7

9
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 8

2
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 8

5
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 8

9
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d


	Agenda
	3 Abolition of Comprehensive Area Assessments and the Audit Commission
	4 Efficiency Programme Update
	5 Annual Governance Report 2009/10
	2009-2010 Annual Governance Report

	6 Procurement
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report - Quarter 1 (2010/11)
	app01 - carbon management
	app02 - halton stadium
	app03 - contactpoint
	app04 - information gov in schools
	app05 - bridge maintenance
	app06 - markets
	app07 - learningdevelopment
	app08 - internet site security
	app09 - land charges (2)
	app10 - palacefields
	app11 - follow up audits


